#### **BOLTON PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION**

#### **REGULAR MEETING**

#### 7:30 PM, WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 8, 2025

#### **BOLTON TOWN HALL, 222 BOLTON CENTER ROAD**

#### In-Person and Via Zoom MINUTES

**PZC Members Present In-Person:** Chairman Tom Manning, Marilee Manning, Thomas Robbins, Alternate

Tom Crockett

PZC Members Present Via Zoom: Vice-Chair James Cropley, Arlene Fiano, Jeremy Flick, Alternates Diane

DeNunzio and Kawan Gordon

PZC Members Absent: Steven Clark

**Staff Present Via Zoom:** Patrice Carson, AICP, Consulting Director of Community Development, Michael D'Amato, Zoning Enforcement Officer, Recording Secretary Kacie Cannon

Others Present In-Person: Atty Ed Joy, Michael Bugnacki, Brian Mensinger, Andrew Ladyga

1. Call to Order: T. Manning called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. D. Denunzio was seated for S. Clark.

#### 2. Approval of Minutes: December 11, 2024

The December 11, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes were amended as follows:

• Item No. 4: "P. Carson stated that staff met with a resident about a Right-of-Way."

A. Fiano MOVED to APPROVE the regular meeting minutes of December 11, 2024 as corrected. D. Denunzio SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0.

#### 3. Residents' Forum:

Brian Mensinger and Andrew Ladyga introduced themselves but did not wish to speak on this item.

#### 4. Staff Reports:

P. Carson stated that she worked with Mr. Taylor to finalize the site selector information for the Cider Mill property and submitted it to the state. She added that she is working with someone at Advanced CT for that project but is unsure when it will be online. P. Carson provided the Board with a handout on the lot coverage and building coverage requirements for discussion on Item No. 8.

P. Carson stated that she and M. D'Amato met with a prospective buyer for the Phillips property on Notch Road and discussed the approved plan and allowed uses for the property. They spoke about potential gravel bank opportunities and advised the buyer that he would need to consult with an engineer. A. Fiano noted that residents on Wall Street previously raised concerns about blasting, undermining, and removing materials. P. Carson stated that is not currently allowed, however bringing material in to crush it a limited number of times is allowed. P. Carson added that he would be allowed to bring in material, crush it and take it away, and store equipment there. P. Carson also mentioned there was previously a lawsuit over a gravel operation on the property. K. Gordon asked if the lawsuit is attached to the land. P. Carson stated that it would not be attached to the land as it would have been a lawsuit against the Town for the permission provided in the permit or the property owner for overstepping the permit. M. Manning recalled that the lawsuit occurred a long time ago.

M. D'Amato reported that staff has been holding various meetings with residents and reviewing regulations that may require some additional amendments.

#### 5. Public Hearings:

a. *CONTINUATION:* Zoning Regulation Amendment to Section 450-6.1N(12)(a) Traditional Multiple Dwelling Complexes for (the Elderly) Seniors, Reducing the Resident Age Restriction from 62 to 55 Years of Age, Michael Bugnacki (#PL-24-5)

Attorney Ed Joy introduced himself on behalf of Michael Bugnacki, who owns a 6-unit apartment building at 7 Loomis Road that presently has a deed restriction of 62 years and older. He explained that Mr. Bugnacki is seeking an Amendment to reduce the age restriction to 55 years of age.

Atty Joy provided a letter from the Capitol Region Council of Governments (CRCOG), dated January 6, 2025, which states that CRCOG does not find any conflicts with regional plans and policies or concerns of neighboring towns. CRCOG also sent a copy of the letter to the surrounding towns, including Coventry and Manchester. Atty Joy provided information on senior housing policies from Coventry and Manchester and noted that they define senior housing as having an age restriction of 55 years of age or older.

K. Gordon asked if residents who will be turning 55 in the year they are applying to live at the property would be considered. Atty Joy replied that potential residents would need to be 55 years old on the date they sign the lease. T. Crockett noted that Manchester's policy mentions surviving members being allowed to remain in the property regardless of age and asked for clarification on how long the surviving member would be allowed to occupy the property. Atty Joy replied that he is unsure if they would be able to continue living at the property after the lease expires.

J. Flick asked to table the item since he has unanswered questions about the property and does not understand how the property received a Certificate of Occupancy. T. Manning stated that the time to get the questions answered is now; however, J. Flick declined to ask the questions.

T. Manning asked for comments from the public. Brian Mensinger, 12 Brian Drive, shared concerns about restrictions to the square footage of the units of 1,000 square feet and noted that his calculations show the units are 1140 square feet. Mr. Bugnacki stated that the overage is due to the covered patio and storage units, and confirmed the units are closer to 950 square feet. J. Cropley advised Mr. Mensinger that the discussion is only on the age restriction amendment. Atty Joy added that the building was approved and has a Certificate of Occupancy.

Mr. Mensinger disagreed with reducing the age restriction and noted that the dictionary and the State of Connecticut define senior citizens as persons who have reached the age of 65 years of age or older. He added that he understands the restriction to 62 years of age but believes 55 years of age does not equate to being elderly or a senior citizen. M. Manning asked Mr. Mensinger why he believes there is a problem in reducing the age restriction. He stated that if certain items are recognized as an aged senior, whether it is 62 or 65, then 55 becomes less than that which should bring in other restrictions that are not applied to the property. M. Manning explained that she believes the intent is to provide more options and a quiet place to an older demographic that are on their way to retirement and prefer to live where there are no children.

Atty Joy pointed out information he provided on the Federal Fair Housing Act that restricts the age to 62 but noted that it also allows exemptions when at least 80% of the complex is 55 years or older. He added that this happens when difficulties arise in filling units with residents aged 62 years and older. T. Crockett asked if the current residents who will be affected support the change. Atty Joy confirmed that they support it.

A. Fiano MOVED to close the Public Hearing. J. Cropley SECONDED. T. Manning called the Roll. MOTION CARRIED 6:1:0 (J. Flick voted NO).

- b. CONTINUATION: Modification of Special Permit to Allow Reduction of Resident Age Restriction from 62 to 55 Years of Age for 6-Unit Senior Housing Project, 7 Loomis Road, Michael Bugnacki (#PL-24-4)

  Atty Joy asked the Board to take notice of what has already been said in the first part of the hearing and added that if the Amendment is granted, he will promptly record a deed that complies with the Town Zoning Restriction of 55 years of age and older.
- T. Manning asked the Board for comments. J. Flick stated that the property should not be approved for inhabitancy due to the condensing unit and propane locations. He reiterated that he does not understand how the property received a Certificate of Occupancy. J. Flick noted that he has discussed these issues with several people in the Town, but nothing has been done.
- T. Manning asked J. Flick if he has provided his concerns in writing. J. Flick replied that it is not his responsibility to do so. T. Manning explained that, from his perspective as an architect, licensed building official, and certified fire marshal, he always cites regulations and measurements on his drawings and cites specific violations to make it easier for the person who has to correct the issues when reviewing plans. T. Manning suggested it might be helpful for J. Flick to outline the issues in writing. J. Flick replied that anyone driving by the property can see there are six condensing units hanging over 120-gallon propane tanks, and he just wants to bring awareness of the issue.

Atty Joy noted that the item is only to discuss the modification of the special permit for the previously approved complex located at 7 Loomis Road.

A. Fiano asked if there is a difference between a senior development versus an age restricted development and whether these discussions would have been necessary if the application did not include the word "senior". T. Manning replied that the Town only has a section on traditional multiple dwelling complexes for seniors. P. Carson added that the examples provided by the attorney say "senior housing". A. Fiano asked if there should be a regulation change to differentiate between senior housing and age restricted properties to make the process easier and less confusing in the future. P. Carson replied that she does not believe so since it is defined in the regulation. Atty Joy stated that if Mr. Bugnacki had come before the Board with an elderly complex that was also going to be funded by HUD or the State of Connecticut, the age would be restricted to 62 years and older. However, since it is a private property and no funding is involved, the age can be dropped to 55 in certain circumstances.

A. Fiano MOVED to close the Public Hearing. T. Robbins SECONDED. T. Manning called the Roll. MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0.

#### 6. Old Business

- a. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE DECISION: Zoning Regulation Amendment to Section 450-6.1N(12)(a) Traditional Multiple Dwelling Complexes for (the Elderly) Seniors, Reducing the Resident Age Restriction from 62 to 55 Years of Age, Michael Bugnacki (#PL-24-5)
- T. Manning MOVED, pursuant to Application No. PL-24-5, that the PZC adopt the Zoning Regulation Amendment to Section 450-6.1N(12)(a) Traditional Multiple Dwelling Complexes for Seniors, reducing the resident age restriction from 62 to 55 years of age, effective January 15, 2025. J. Cropley SECONDED.

Discussion: J. Cropley stated that there are always discussions from the public about housing for younger people and older people that cannot afford homes in the town and believes this Amendment opens up more opportunities to some of the older demographic. He added that it does not tax the Town, and surveys have shown this is something that people in the Town want.

T. Manning called the Roll. MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0.

## b. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE DECISION: Modification of Special Permit to Allow Reduction of Resident Age Restriction from 62 to 55 Years of Age for 6-Unit Senior Housing Project, 7 Loomis Road, Michael Bugnacki (#PL-24-4)

T. Manning MOVED to modify Michael Bugnacki's Special Permit Application No. PL-24-4 to allow the reduction of the resident age restriction from 62 to 55 years of age for the 6-unit senior housing project at 7 Loomis Road. J. Cropley SECONDED.

Discussion: J. Flick requested that the building be brought up to code.

T. Manning called the Roll. MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0.

c. Other: No other old business.

7. New Business

a. Other: No other new business.

#### 8. ONGOING DISCUSSION: Bolton Subdivision and Zoning Regulations

T. Manning stated that he would like to resolve the issue concerning the property expansion resident Tyler Clark has requested to accommodate his growing family. He noted that he is ready to take action to change the regulations so that Mr. Clark will not be required to apply for a text amendment, go to the ZBA, or pay \$4,000.00 for a survey. T. Manning stated that the changes would not just be applied to the Clark family but would apply broadly to anyone seeking vertical changes to a non-conforming structure.

- T. Manning stated that staff offered language to change the regulations. P. Carson replied that she had just provided some examples, and that staff has not offered a change yet. T. Manning noted that he likes the language in the example and would like to discuss the change and hold a public hearing. He read the proposed regulation which states, in part, that a non-conforming structure may be expanded provided a zoning permit is issued and as long as the expansion is no closer to property line than the existing building, does not create a public safety hazard, and conforms with all other restrictions. T. Manning added that the language applies to any zone or case.
- J. Cropley asked if the language means that a property could only be expanded in an upward direction. T. Manning replied that it is more general than that and explained that the side that is non-conforming could not be built in a manner that would create further violations, but the other sides could be expanded and could go up within the height limitations. T. Crockett stated he is in favor of the change. M. Manning agreed and noted that it would be beneficial for all property owners.
- K. Gordon asked if this would create any issues with impervious structures and percentages. M. D'Amato replied that coverage requirements are in place, and they would still govern how large of an expansion would be permitted.

M. D'Amato explained that the examples include a mix of various regulations, including some language from Ashford and Woodstock, pertaining to non-conforming uses. T. Manning confirmed that the proposed amendment would be made to Section 450-3.3 Non-conforming Uses, Part C and added as Item No. 3. Since the amendment would require a public hearing, P. Carson suggested including some of the additional items that have previously been discussed and finalized to the Public Hearing to address all the changes at one time.

The commissioners reviewed a handout on lot coverage references in the zoning regulations. M. Manning asked for clarification on the "unified village style" mentioned in the handout. P. Carson explained that it is a zone that was designed for one particular location and intended for a housing plan that never happened. T. Manning added that the Town had received a grant to revise the zoning regulations, specifically for an incentive housing zone, and the unified village style development concept was created as part of it. P. Carson stated that, although it was intended for one specific area, it could be requested as an overlay for a different area. She referenced the Dollar General property on Route 44 as an example and noted that it can be applied to a mixed-use development.

- T. Manning asked about the additional changes to include in the Public Hearing. P. Carson stated that the changes were provided in a recent meeting packet which referenced lot corners, measurements, photos, and simplifying modifications to go through staff rather than the engineer. T. Manning suggested trying to set a public hearing in March so that the changes would be effective in the spring and agreed the other changes should be included in the Public Hearing.
- P. Carson referred to the lot coverage handout and explained the contents. She stated that there were questions on why building and lot coverage are different. P. Carson explained there is no definition for lot coverage; however, there is a definition for building coverage area and the PZC needs to decide whether to keep the categories separate or combine them to include everything under lot coverage. T. Manning stated it would be useful to keep them separate and recommended providing an additional definition for lot coverage that would be inclusive of building coverage in some zones to cover occasions where the building coverage should be restricted to leave developed lot coverage such as parking, and sidewalks, etc.
- P. Carson asked if the coverage percentages of 15% should remain the same and noted retirement communities are higher at 25%. T. Manning replied that they would likely need to be adjusted to the definitions. M. D'Amato explained that two things led to this point. One is that commercial property owners trying to expand their businesses are limited to the lot that they have. He stated that if the Town does not have a lot of commercial properties, more flexibility should be provided. He stated that the other recommendation, if separating the definitions between lot coverage and building coverage, is to do it by zone to avoid non-conformity and complications in the event that a CCRC with an allowance of 25% changes to a multi-dwelling complex with a 10% allowance.

A. Fiano asked if the reason impervious coverage is limited is due to rainwater and maintaining runoff. M. D'Amato replied that he believes that is the intent along with ensuring green space, landscaping, and appropriate building situation to maintain a consistent look with other properties. He added that there are new ways to deal with stormwater. A. Fiano agreed and stated that businesses need to be dealt with differently than residences in terms of restrictions. M. D'Amato referenced what was done in the Ashford Lake District with respect to stormwater and overflow. A. Fiano suggested different regulations for lake areas, residences, and commercial properties. P. Carson stated that would be done by zones and noted that the lake is surrounded by an R-3 zone with the exception of the "lake house".

P. Carson brought up the subject of providing notice to "abutters" and stated that the only statutory requirement is that legal notice must be published twice prior to the public hearing. She noted that additional notice can be provided by mailing a notice to property owners that are *adjacent* to the subject property or posting a sign on the land. P. Carson explained that the regulations currently require that a sign be posted on the land and that the applicant notify land owners within 500 feet of the subject property. She asked if the commission wants to consider making any changes to the current policy since by statute, notice, if required, is only required to "adjacent" land owners. By law, "aggrieved" property owners are only those within 100 feet, and it would be more cost-effective if the applicant only has to notify those owners rather than all land owners within 500 feet.

The PZC discussed that notifying property owners within 500 feet may provide false hope that they can oppose something and take it to court when actually only those within 100 feet have standing to do so. P. Carson stated that anyone can speak at a public hearing but not everyone would have standing to take action. She asked the commission to determine whether posting a sign on the land and notifying property owners within 100 feet is sufficient or whether they want to require notice to those within 500 feet. She suggested the PZC may want to solicit input from the Town Attorney.

- T. Manning stated that he will be in touch with P. Carson about specific languages for the text amendment changes and determine the list of items to include in the Public Hearing.
- **9**. **Correspondence:** There was no correspondence.

#### 10. Adjournment

J. Cropley MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 8:54 p.m. A. Fiano SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0.

Respectfully submitted by Kacie Cannon

Kacie Cannon

Please see the minutes of subsequent meetings for the approval of these minutes and any corrections hereto.

#### CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING AGENCIES OUARTERLY NEWSLETTER

Winter 2025

Volume XXIX, Issue 1

#### SAVE THE DATE – 2025 ANNUAL CONFERENCE

The Federation will hold its Annual Conference on March 27, 2025 at the Aqua Turf Country Club in Plantsville CT. The event starts at 5:00 p.m. The program for the Conference will include a presentation on Affordable Housing Appeals as well as the 2025 Land Use Legislative Agenda. Flyers announcing the event will be sent to all members later this month. Attendees will be entitled to receive credit for One Hour of Training as well as enjoy a wonderful dinner.

#### EFFECT ON PROPERTY VALUES TO BE CONSIDERED IN CELL TOWER APPLICATIONS

In order the to oppose construction of 100' tall telecommunications their tower in neighborhood, residents formed a nonprofit group and intervened in a hearing before the Connecticut Siting Council. A wireless provider had filed an application for a certificate of environmental compatibility and public need so that it could erect a wireless telecommunications tower. Evidence was presented by the wireless provider that coverage was inadequate in parts of the town and that the location of a wireless tower in the intervenors' neighborhood would address coverage need. The intervenors disputed

this evidence and also presented evidence that the proposed tower would adversely affect their property values.

The question for the court was whether effects on property values can be considered by the Siting Council when making a decision to approve an application for a wireless tower. In deciding whether to approve an application, the Siting Council must first decide whether there is a public need for it. If there is, the Council must then weigh this need against any adverse environmental effect the proposed wireless facility would have.

The factors that the Siting Council must consider in making its determination of whether there are adverse environmental impacts are stated in Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 16-50p (a) (3). These factors include effects on the natural environment, scenic, historic and recreational values as well as public health and safety. Property values are not specifically listed. However, the Court stated that this list was not to interpreted as an exhaustive list and that it includes other, unenumerated factors.\* Thus, adverse effects on property values can be considered by the Siting Council but only in reference to how a reduction in such values is evidence of negative effects on the listed factors. Woodbridge Newton Neighborhood Environmental Trust v. Connecticut Siting Council, 349 Conn. 619 (2024), See Vol. 28 Issue 1 of this newsletter for lower court decision.

Written and Edited by
Attorney Steven E. Byrne
P.O. Box 1065, Farmington CT 06034-1065
Tel. (860) 677-7355
attysbyrne@gmail.com
contact.cfpza@gmail.com

#### CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING AGENCIES QUARTERLY NEWSLETTER

Winter 2025

Volume XXIX, Issue 1

#### REDUCTION IN NONCONFORMITY

The owners of a nonconforming shoreline property filed an application to replace an existing nonconforming dwelling. An application by the same owners had been denied a year prior to. The original application sought variances from shoreline and side yard setbacks so that the new dwelling could be built further from the water as required by FEMA regulations. new application sought the same relief accept that the new location for the proposed dwelling would result in a decrease in existing nonconformities, including lot coverage.

The second denial was appealed to court where it was found the board applied the wrong standard in its reasoning to deny the application. First, the board believed it was not required to approve a variance application just would reduce because it nonconformity. While a board is not required to approve such an application, the court stated that the denial needs to be supported by substantial evidence in the record. Board members' speculation that existing nonconformities could be reduced even more was not a valid basis to support the denial.

The Board also incorrectly applied the 'impotent to reverse' rule which states that a zoning board cannot reach a different decision on a subsequent application that is substantially like a prior application

unless there has been a change in circumstances or conditions. In this case, while the two applications were similar, circumstances had changed as the second application would reduce nonconforming aspects of the property. Warner v. Zoning Board of Appeals, MMX-CV-23-6038768 (10.15.24)

## SHORT-TERM RENTAL A PERMITTED USE OF A SINGLEFAMILY HOME

The State Supreme Court issued a ruling upholding a decision by the State Appellate Court that a short-term rental of a single-family home is one of the permissible uses of such a building unless it is specifically prohibited by the zoning regulations. In this case, the zoning regulations listed as a permitted use in a residential district the erection of a single-family dwelling which is "a building designed for and occupied exclusively as a home or residence for not more than one family."

While the Board argued that the term 'home' indicated that transient uses were not intended, the court disagreed finding that the term 'residence' indicated a more expansive interpretation was applicable here. In reaching this decision, the court applied the long-established rule that "because zoning regulations are in derogation of common-law property rights, they must be strictly construed and not expanded by implication." In other words, if short

Written and Edited by
Attorney Steven E. Byrne
P.O. Box 1065, Farmington CT 06034-1065
Tel. (860) 677-7355
attysbyrne@gmail.com
contact.cfpza@gmail.com

#### CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING AGENCIES QUARTERLY NEWSLETTER

Winter 2025

Volume XXIX, Issue 1

term rentals are not permitted, it must be expressly stated. Wihbey v. Zoning Board of Appeals, 350 Conn. 87 (2024).

#### FUNDEMENTAL FAIRNESS

An application for a dog park was approved by an inland wetlands and watercourses commission. Five years later, an application to modify the approved plan was submitted. modified plan sought to reduce the size of the approved parking lot and access road as well as modify the drainage plan to include a planting plan. Opponents of the dog park tried to re-argue the original approval. The commission based its decision solely on the proposed modifications and found that they would have less impact on the regulated areas than the original plan.

The decision was appealed, in part, on a claim that the Commission had denied the park opponents a fair hearing, depriving them of fundamental fairness. The court disagreed, finding that the proceedings before the commission complied with the standards for a fair hearing. These standards only require that due notice of a hearing is given, no one is deprived of the right or the opportunity to present evidence or crossexamine witnesses of an adversary and to know the evidence upon which the commission will act.

In regard to whether the application was complete and provided all necessary information, the court

stated the well-established rule that the determination on whether an application is complete belongs to the land use agency. *Dudash v. Conservation Commission*, FST-CV-22-6056996 (8.18.23).

#### **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

#### Lifetime Achievement Award and Length of Service Award

Nomination forms will be sent out later this month for these awards which will be presented to recipients at the Federation's annual conference. You should begin your process of finding eligible nominees now.

#### Workshops

Connecticut law now requires that every land use agency member receive 4 hours of training every two years. At the price of \$200.00 per session for each agency attending, our workshops are an affordable way for your board to 'stay legal'.

#### ABOUT THE EDITOR

Steven Byrne is an attorney with an office in Farmington, Connecticut. A principal in the law firm of Byrne & Byrne LLC, he maintains a strong focus in the area of land use law and is available for consultation and representation in all land use matters both at the administrative and court levels.

Written and Edited by,
Attorney Steven E. Byrne
P.O. Box 1065, Farmington CT 06034-1065
Tel. (860) 677-7355
attysbyrne@gmail.com
contact.cfpza@gmail.com

## CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSIONS 77th ANNUAL CONFERENCE AQUA TURF COUNTRY CLUB PLANTSVILLE, CONNECTICUT

January 27, 2025

Chairman of Planning and/or Zoning Commission and Zoning Boards of Appeal

RE: CFPZA Annual Conference – March 27, 2025

Dear Chairman:

I am writing to encourage you and your commission members to consider attending this year's Annual Conference of the Connecticut Federation of Planning and Zoning Agencies. The night is sure to be both enjoyable and informative. Part of the evening's program will be a presentation on Affordable Housing Appeals as governed by Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 8-30g. Many land use commissions have been informed by developers that unless their application for housing is approved, an affordable housing application will be submitted. The legal implications of an affordable housing application on a land use commission's discretion as well as the likely outcome of an appeal to the Superior Court will be addressed by our speaker. While the Affordable Housing Appeal process has been in existence for over 30 years, there are still questions regarding its effect on the land use process.

Public Act 21-29 now requires an educational component for all land use commission members. At a cost of only \$70.00 per individual, this conference is a cost-effective way toward satisfying this requirement while providing an opportunity to enjoy dinner and socialize with commission members from other towns.

In addition, Length of Service awards will be presented to commission members who have served in any capacity for 12 or 25 years. If you have a commission member who is eligible, please submit his or her name using the attached form.

I hope to see you and members of your commission at this worthwhile event!

Steven Byrne, Ex. Dir. CT Fed. of Planning & Zoning Agencies



# CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING AGENCIES



#### **ANNOUNCES**

ITS



77th ANNUAL CONFERENCE

THURSDAY, MARCH 27, 2025

#### AT THE

#### AQUA TURF COUNTRY CLUB PLANTSVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Cost: \$70.00 per person for Agencies that are members of the CFPZA \$80.00 per person for Agencies that are not members of the CFPZA

The enclosed registration form must be received by the Connecticut Federation of Planning & Zoning Agencies by mail, or email no later than Tuesday, March 25, 2024

P.O. Box 1065, Farmington, CT 06034-1065

email: contact.cfpza@gmail.com

Questions? Contact Steve Byrne at (860) 677-7355

More info on back



#### 77th ANNUAL CFPZA CONFERENCE

Aqua Turf Country Club Plantsville, CT Thursday, March 27, 2025

#### **PROGRAM**

5:00 p.m. SOCIAL HOUR / REGISTRATION

6:00 p.m. **DINNER** 

Salad, Penne, NY Strip, Vegetables, Potato,

Dessert

7:15 p.m. AWARDS PRESENTATION

12-Year Length of Service Awards

Lifetime Achievement Awards

8:00 p.m. **TOPIC:** Affordable Housing Appeals as governed by

Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 8-30g

Many land use commissions have been informed by developers that unless their application for housing is approved, an affordable housing application will be submitted. The legal implications of an affordable housing application on a land use commission's discretion as well as the likely outcome of an appeal to the Superior Court will be addressed by our speaker. While the Affordable Housing Appeal process has been in existence for over 30 years, there are still questions regarding its effect on the land use process.

Principal speaker: Hon. Marshall K. Berger

A retired Superior Court Judge, Marshal Berger established and presided over the land use docket, a specialized superior court assignment that focused exclusively on land use and environmental cases, for nearly a decade. Additionally, he taught land use law as an adjunct professor at the UConn School of Law. Judge Berger is widely respected and admired for his knowledge and expertise in land use matters.

#### DIRECTIONS TO THE AQUA TURF

I-84 EAST FROM WATERBURY – Merge onto I-169 E via Exit 27 toward Meriden. Take the CT-10 exit, EXIT 3, toward Cheshire. Turn left onto CT-10 (Highland Ave.). Continue to follow CT-10. Stay straight to go onto Old Turnpike Road. Turn right onto Mulberry Street. Aqua Turf, 556 Mulberry Street is on right.

I-84 WEST FROM HARTFORD – Take the CT-10 exit, EXIT 29, on the left toward Milldale. Stay straight to go onto Mulberry Street. Aqua Turf, 556 Mulberry Street is on right.

FROM I-91 OR THE MERRITT PARKWAY – Merge onto I-169 E via Exit 27 toward Meriden. Take the CT-10 exit, EXIT 3, toward Cheshire. Turn left onto CT-10 (Highland Ave.). Continue to follow CT-10. Stay straight to go onto Old Turnpike Road. Turn right onto Mulberry Street. Aqua Turf, 556 Mulberry Street is on right.

# CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSIONS 77<sup>th</sup> ANNUAL CONFERENCE THURSDAY, MARCH 27, 2025 AQUA TURF COUNTRY CLUB PLANTSVILLE, CONNECTICUT

#### **REGISTRATION FORM**

Agency Name	Town	
Individual's names	Position	Special Diet (Please Specify)
·		
Cost: \$70.00 per person for Agencie \$80.00 per person for Agencie	es that are members of the CFP?	ZA CFPZA
Number of Attendees x \$70	0.00 or \$80.00 = \$	
Mail or ema	il this registration form to:	
Connecticut Federati	on of Planning & Zoning Agenci	es

Connecticut Federation of Planning & Zoning Agencies
P.O. Box 1065
Farmington, CT 06034-1065
contact.cfpza@gmail.com

Make checks payable to: "Connecticut Federation of Planning and Zoning Agencies."

Reservations must be received by Tuesday, March 25, 2025.

Cancellations will be accepted until noon on March 26, 2025 by calling CFPZA at (860) 677-7355. All reservations not properly cancelled must be paid for.

# CONNECTICUT FEDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSIONS 77<sup>th</sup> ANNUAL CONFERENCE AQUA TURF COUNTRY CLUB PLANTSVILLE, CONNECTICUT

January 27, 2025

Chairman of Planning and/or Zoning Commissions and Zoning Boards of Appeal

RE: Length of Service Awards / Lifetime Achievement Awards

Dear Chairman:

Length of Service Awards will be presented at the Connecticut Federation of Planning and Zoning Agencies' Annual Conference on March 27, 2025, to those persons who have served 12 or more years as a member of a planning commission, zoning commission, planning and zoning commission or zoning board of appeals.

The twelve years of service may be a combination of time spent as a member of all four agencies. The twelve years, however, must be continuous from year to year.

Lifetime Achievement awards are presented to individuals who have served at least twenty-five (25) years in the area of land use, either as a member of a zoning agency or as staff or advisor to a zoning agency. Please contact Steven Byrne at (860) 677-7355 or by email (contact.cfpza@gmail.com) if there is an individual you believe should be considered for this award.

All nominations should be mailed or emailed to:

The Connecticut Federation of Planning and Zoning Agencies
P.O. Box 1065
Farmington, CT 06034-1065
contact.cfpza@gmail.com

Please note that individuals who have received these awards in the past are not eligible to receive them again. If you need information about whether an individual has previously been a recipient, please contact us at (860) 677-7355.

All nominations for awards must be returned no later than March 21, 2025.

NOMINATION FORMS ATTACHED

#### TWELVE YEAR LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD NOMINATION FORM

1.	Name of Agency Town			
2.	Name and home address of Length of Service Award candidate:			
	Name:			
	Home Address:			
3.	Contact information for person(s) making this nomination.			
	Name Home Address Home/Business Phone			
4.	Name and address of individual to send congratulation letter confirming award:			
5.	Length of Service: List below the names of agencies and dates served. Length of service must be continuous and total 12 years. It may, however, consist of time spent on a planning commission, zoning commission, combined commission and/or zoning board of appeals. Time spent as an alternate member is valid.			

Individuals who have received this award previously ARE NOT eligible to receive it again. Please call (860) 677-7355 or e-mail contact.cfpza@gmail.com to inquire about members who may have previously received an award.

### LIFETIME ACHIEVEMENT AWARD NOMINATION FORM

1.	Name of Agency	Town _			
2.	Name and home address of	of Lifetime Achievement Award	candidate:		
	Name:		-		
	Home Address:				
3. 🛶	Contact information for po	Contact information for person(s) making this nomination.			
	Name	Home Address	Home/Business Phone		
4.	Name and address of individual to send congratulation letter confirming award:				
5.	Lifetime Achievement: List below the names of agencies and dates served. Length of service must be continuous and total 25 or more years. It may, however, consist of time spent on a planning commission, zoning commission, combined commission and/or zoning board of appeals. Time spent as an alternate member is valid. This award is also open to individuals who have served part or all of the above time as professional staff to one or more of the above-mentioned agencies.				

Individuals who have received this award previously ARE NOT eligible to receive it again. Please call (860) 677-7355 or e-mail contact.cfpza@gmail.com to inquire about members who may have previously received an award.

A brief 1-2 paragraph bio about the recipient's tenure and notable achievements to be read by our moderator at the presentation ceremony is requested.